

Educational Visits and Off-Site Activities Policy, Guidelines and Protocol

| Signed: | Emily Clayton |
|--------------|----------------|
| Position: | Centre Manager |
| Date Agreed: | January 2024 |
| Next Review: | January 2025 |

Contents

| 1. Introduction | |
|---|----|
| 2. Organisation of Visits | |
| 3. Planning Checklist for Off-Site Activities | 11 |
| 4. Checklist of Information to Parents | 15 |
| 5. Risk Assessment | 17 |
| 6. Emergency Procedures | 20 |
| 7. Advice on Specific Activities | 22 |
| 8. Transport and Travel | |
| 9. First Aid Kit | |
| 10. Protection of Children | |
| 11. Local Learning Area (Blue text COVID related) | 29 |
| Appendix 1 | |
| Appendix 2 | |

1. Introduction

This policy covers all off-site activities organised through Amegreen Stable Futures and for which the Centre Manager and staff team are responsible.

The Centre seeks to ensure that every pupil has access to a wide range of community and educational experiences. The Centre recognises the significant educational and personal skills development value of visits and activities which take place away from the immediate Centre environment.

The Centre aims to become an educational environment in which all members of the Centre community can thrive, regardless of race, religion, culture, gender or individual need. We intend to apply this aim to the planning and management of all visits and off-site activities.

Visits and off-site activities support, enrich and extend the curriculum in many subject areas, encourage co-operation, teamwork and the application <code>dproblem-solving</code> skills and develop independence and self-confidence.

Residential opportunities, physical challenge and adventure can have a particular part to play for some of our young People, in the development of personal and social qualities for all young people. Outdoor education helps our young people to be physically active and to understand how to assess and manage risk.

The management of visits and off-site activities places particular responsibilities for the health, safety and welfare of all participants. Members of staff and volunteers, pupils and parents. The Centre also has responsibilities to other members of the public and to third parties. This policy supplements the Centre's health and safety policy.

Responsibilities of the Centre

Under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, the Centre must take reasonable steps to ensure that staff and pupils are not exposed to risks to their health and safety. This applies to activities on or off the Centre premises.

Regulations made under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 set out in detail what actions employers are required to take which include:

- assess the risks to staff and others affected by Centre activities in order to identify the health and safety measures that are necessary and, in certain circumstances, keep a record of the significant findings of that assessment.
- introduce measures to manage those risks (risk management); tell the employees about the risks and measures to be taken to manage the risks.

ensure that adequate training is given to employees on health and safety matters.

The Bridge Centre is required to ensure that its employees are provided with: updated

- appropriate guidance relating to education visits and off-site activity.
- access to training courses to support the guidance to ensure that it is understood.
- suitable systems and processes to ensure that those trained and updated
- Access to advice, support and further training is sought from Advisers that have proven expertise and professional understanding of the guidance.

The Centre will annually subscribe to updates. Provide a clear process for planning, recording, approving and evaluating educational visits.

All visits should be thoroughly researched to establish suitability of the venue. Check that facilities and third-party provision will meet group expectations. Such information gathering is essential in assessing the requirements for effective supervision of young people.

Wherever reasonably practicable, it is good practice to carry out a preliminary visit. Establishment policy should clarify the circumstances where a preliminary visit is arequirement.

If providers do not hold the LOtC Quality Badge a completed Providers' Assessment Form, Risk Assessment or similar is required.

Responsibilities of the Deputy Centre Manager

The Deputy will:

• Ensure all visits and off-site activities have specific and appropriate personal development or educational objectives;

- Ensure off-site programmes are led by competent staff who are appropriately experienced and qualified to assess the risks, manage the activity and manage the specific group.
- Check that the staffing ratio is suitable for each visit.
- Ensure that procedures are in place to ensure they are made aware of visits so that questions can be asked if necessary.

Responsibilities of Employees

It is an expectation that all employees will follow this policy and guidance within the framework, acquainting themselves with visit location H&S information as well as individual pupil risk assessments including medical needs and travel risk assessments.

Responsibilities of the Centre Staff Team

In order to carry out the above responsibilities effectively the Centre managers may delegate specified tasks to a suitable experienced competent Lead who will act as Co-ordinator (EVC). The Deputy will be considered to be the EVC where tasks are not delegated to a named member of staff. The EVC will be responsible for carrying out agreed tasks and attending relevant training provided.

Approval of Off-Site Activities

The Deputy will be responsible for approving all off-site activities. This includes approving the Leader for each visit or off-site activity.

The Centre Manager and the Education Lead/Directors will be informed about visits which:

- Have a residential element.
- Are visits abroad.
- Are visits where there is significant concern about health, safety and welfare.

The Deputy will monitor off-site visits and activities and will provide a regular report to the Education Lead and Directors about the off-site activities which have taken place from the Centre.

Responsibilities of the Visit Leader

The Visit Leader will:

- Have overall responsibility for the supervision and conduct of the visit activity; Obtain the Deputy approval before any off-site visit or activity takes place.
- Follow the policy and procedures of the Centre.
- Assess the risks involved and amend as appropriate any previously recorded risk assessment.
- Use the Centre planning checklist to ensure all procedures have been followed.
- Inform parents/carers fully about the visit and gain their consent, when appropriate.
- Reassess risks while the visit or activity takes place.
- Ensure there is contingency plan (Plan B) should a significant change the programme be necessary due to weather etc.
- All visits and activities will be offered to all pupils regardless of ability or special need. The visit Leader should establish what additional equipment or specialised transport needs to be provided and this will be built into the total cost of the trip and no child will be excluded as a result of expense of lack of suitable transport.

Responsibilities of additional members of staff taking part in visits and off-site activities

Members of staff, volunteers and parent helpers should:

Assist the Party Leader to ensure the health, safety and welfare of young people on the visit.

Be informed regarding the trip risk assessment and individual children's risk assessments and medical needs.

Be clear about their roles and responsibilities whilst taking part in a visit activity.

Responsibilities of pupils

Whilst taking part in off-site activities pupils also have responsibilities which they should be made aware by the Visit Leader or other members of staff, for their own health and safety and that of the group. Young people should, as far as they are able:

- Avoid unnecessary risks.
- Follow instructions of the Party Leader and other members of staff.
- Behave sensibly, keeping to any agreed code of conduct.
- Inform a member of staff of significant hazards: some children will need to be equipped with specific signal / communication prompts for trips.

Responsibilities of parents

Parents have an important role in deciding whether any visit or off-site activity is suitable for their child. Subject to their agreement to the activity should:

- Support the application of any agreed code of conduct.
- Inform the Visit Leader about any medical, psychological or physical condition relevant to the visit.
- Provide an emergency contact number.
- Sign the consent form.

The provision of training and information

A copy of this policy and associated Centre procedures will be made available to all staff within the Centre who may be responsible for leading off-site visits and activities and to any parent requesting a copy.

The EVC will make additional information available to staff to help ensure the safe management of off-site activities.

Appropriate training will be made available to leaders and other adults taking part in offsite activities in order to reflect identified Centre health and safety priorities and educational priorities. The Centre Administration will maintain arecord of the qualifications (training matrix) held by staff and volunteers involved in outdoor activities including first aid, lifesaving, minibus driving and specific hazardous activities. This includes checking for DBS clearance for all staff and volunteers.

Action in the case of emergency

The Deputy Headteacher will ensure that emergency arrangements are in place, known to staff and in line with Centre policy, to cover the range of activities undertaken from the Centre and the times at which they take place. This will include emergency contact numbers for designated senior members of staff. First aid provision and training of staff will be in accordance with Centre expectations.

Accidents and incidents

Any accidents and incidents that occur during off-site visits and activities will be reported and recorded in accordance with the Centre health and safety policy. Accidents and incidents will subsequently be reviewed within the Centre to identify any learning points. (Forms from Centre Office).

Management of specific provision

The following arrangements apply to the management of specific provision for off-site visits and activities:

• Minibus Policy

Monitoring and review policy and practice

The Centre will review this policy:

- Every year;
- At such time as there are significant changes to national guidance re the management of Outdoor Education, Visits and Off-Site Activities;
- Should significant issues be brought to the attention of the Centre

2. Organisation of Visits

Supervision

When working with groups of children or young people it's important that there are enough adults to provide the appropriate level of supervision and will not be less than in Centre.

It is important to have a suitable ratio of adult supervisors to participants for any excursion. The factors to take into consideration include:

- Sex, age and ability of the group.
- Those with additional support or medical needs.
- Nature of activities.
- Experience of adults in off-site supervision.
- Duration and nature of the journey.
- Type of any accommodation.
- Competence of staff, both general and on specific activities.
- Requirements of the organization / location to be visited.
- Competence and behaviour of participants.
- First aid cover.

In addition to the Visit Leader there should be enough supervisors to act effectively with an emergency. When excursions are to remote areas or involve hazardous activities, the risks may be greater and supervision levels should be set accordingly.

Staff will need to have:

- An understanding of their responsibility to keep children and yourg people safe.
- Insurance for certain activities.

Four categories of activities and associated approval systems are established:

| Category | Examples of programmes | Approval procedure |
|----------|--|--------------------|
| A | Local learning area visits. Walking within the local Centre environment. | Verbal consent |
| В | Visits, journeys and environmental studies for which the element of risk | EVC |

| | is similar to that encountered in daily life e.g. farm visits, visits to sites of historic, commercial or cultural interest, most fieldwork, sports tours and leisure centre visits, local walks, journeys to the zoo or theatre. | |
|---|---|---|
| С | Hazardous outdoor and adventurous activities which take place within the regional area, having an element of risk and for which there is a county system of leader registration, except those listed within Category C. | Centre Manager/ EVC Director approval, dependent on Centre procedures. |
| | All visits abroad. All other hazardous activities of which i n c l u d e multi-pitch, rock climbing, caving with pitches over 18m, white water canoeing or kayaking, coastal sailing journeys, sea journeys by canoe or kayak, windsurfing on tidal waters. | Centr Manager Director approval, dependent on Centre procedures. |

3. Planning Checklist for Off-Site Activities

This checklist is to help the Deputy Headteacher, EVC and the Party Leader bensure:

- The health, safety and welfare of young people and staff; The maximum development and educational benefit to young people;
- Effective management, planning, organisation and leadership.

1. Visit Leader

Is there a clearly identified Party Leader, sufficiently experienced and competent to assess the risks and manage the proposed visit or activity?

2. Purpose

Is there a clearly identified purpose for the whole programme and any of its constituent parts appropriate to the age and ability of the group?

3. Risk Assessment

Has the visit Leader assessed the risks involved in all aspects of the visit or activity and recorded the significant findings (or made reference to a previous record, with amendments as necessary?) Take a copy of the risk assessment on the visit.

4. Location

Is the proposed location of the visit suitable for the activity to be undertaken and manageable for the group?

5. Advice

Have you sought advice from someone with expertise or technical competence where there is uncertainty about safe practice? This may be a member of staff who has a co-ordinating role for off-site activities within your establishment.

6. Approval

Does the proposed activity fall within Category C? If so, it will also need to be assessed by the Centre Manager or EVC at the planning stage. Does the proposed activity fall within Category B?

7. Venue

Does the visit involve hazardous activities booked through commercial, charitable or private providers?

| | | I |
|--|--|---|
| | | L |
| | | L |
| | | |

| | _ |
|--|---|

8. Staff

Are members of staff, instructors or adult volunteers aware of hazardous activities suitably qualified and experienced, i.e. competent, to do so? Have members of staff or adult volunteers been vetted, regarding child protection, where necessary? Safeguarding policy. Does staffing include male and female supervision, where necessary?

9. Staff/Pupil Ratio

Will the group have an acceptable staff/pupil ratio necessary of the activities proposed? Do plans and staffing ratios reflect the needs or disabilities of the group?

Preliminary Visit

Has the Party Leader made a preliminary visit to the site or Centre to be visited, to check arrangements? (e.g. travel time, access and permission, facilities and equipment, leisure or recreational facilities for residential stays, staff support, guides or programs of potential health and safety issues, shelter, toilets, accommodation, contingency arrangements, references from previous users.) If not, has action been taken to ensure the Leader is aware of potential hazards and opportunities?

Parental Consent

Has parental consent been obtained for the visit, and for hazardous activities which are planned?

10. The Programme

Do young people and staff have the appropriate clothing and equipment necessary for the activities proposed and allowing for weather conditions? If not, will another provider be offering additional appropriate equipment? Are the young people prepared for and physically capable of taking part in the proposed activity? Is the programme suitable for all participants? Is there analternative programme in the event of poor weather?

Medical Needs

Are sufficient staff aware of dietary and medical needs of young people and staff? Is a first Aid kit, personal medication arranged?

Transport

Transport is appropriate and legal transport available? Are there suitable and sufficient qualified drivers for any planned minibus journey?

Will departure and return times be made known to staff, young people and parents? Is there a contingency plan, in the event of a delay or early return?

11. Organisation

Has the procedure for organising trips and activities been followed?

12. Finance and Insurance

Has the activity been costed and signed off by the EVC? Is there adequate and relevant insurance cover?

13. Briefing for Young People

Will the young people be properly briefed on the activities they will undertake during the visit? The briefing may need to include:

- Appropriate clothing and equipment
- Rendezvous procedures
- Safety risks of jewellery
- Groupings for study or supervisory purposes
- A system of recall and action in emergencies
- Agreed codes of conduct and behaviour
- Significant hazards
- Relevance to prior and future learning

14. Briefing for Staff

Will the Leader also brief adults and voluntary helpers? briefing may need to include:

- Anticipation of hazards and the nature of the programme
- Defining roles and responsibilities of staff
- Careful supervision, to cover the whole time away
- Standards of behaviour expected from young people
- Regular counting of participants
- How much help to give to young people in their tasks
- A list of names of people in subgroups
- Emergency procedures

15. Emergency Contact

Has a named point of contact been identified at home or "base" in the event of an emergency, who has a contact list of the group members, including staff, and a programme of the group's activities? Are sufficient staff aware of procedures and relevant phone numbers in the event of an emergency?

16. Preparation and Communication

Is there adequate time and opportunity to prepare for the visit activity? Have other staff and colleagues whose work may affected been notified or planned arrangements?

17. Centre Organisation

- Lists Centre Office;
- Departure and return times;
- Contact details for young people
- Centre Emergency contact details

18. Follow Up

Have arrangements been considered for appropriate follow-up work and evaluation after the visit? Has a report been provided of the Deputy or EVC where appropriate, to share positive aspects of the visit and learn from problems or incidents? Have other records been completed related to vehicles or equipment, for example? Have financial records been completed?

4. Checklist of Information to Parents/Carers

The list below gives the information which should be given in writing to parents before obtaining their written consent for journeys abroad or residential visits in the UK. Parents need less information regarding day visits but, if the return is after Centre hours and/or hazardous activities are included, most of the information below will be required.

Local visits on foot, in Centre time, to non-hazardous venues do not normally need written parental consent. It may be appropriate to inform parents of this principle at the beginning of their children's Centre career or in the handbook for parents.

A specific programme of events occurring over a period of time, such as a term, may only require one consent form. However, parents will need to be kept informed of other specific arrangements for each part of the programme.

- 1. Date
- 2. Objectives of visit or activity
- 3. Times of departure and return, including location for meeting parents.
- 4. Method of travel including name of any travel company.
- 5. Accommodation with address and telephone number,
- 6. Emergency contact arrangements at home and away, if all young people are not at Centre. Consider the value of a "telephone tree" to make any and rapid contact with a large group of parents, e.g. regarding changed transport arrangements.
- 7. Names of leader and accompanying staff.
- 8. Names and status (e.g. parent) of other accompanying adults who exercise some responsibility during the visit.
- 9. Details of activities planned. Any activity involving special hazards must clearly specified.
- 10. Charges or voluntary contributions. What they cover and do not cover.
- 11. Methods of payment and cancellation arrangements.
- 12. Insurance effected for the group members in respect of a personal accident, cancellation and medical cover. Send photocopy insurance schedule to all parents or state that a copy of schedule may
- 13. Clothing/footwear and other items to be taken. Prohibited items.
- 14. Money to be taken.
- 15. Code of conduct; details relating to the standard of behaviour expected from the group during the visit, including, for example, rules on gread group discipline, smoking, sexual behaviour, illegal substances and alcohol
- 16. Parents should complete a medical form for all except day educational visits and give their written consent for emergency medical treatment.

5. Risk Assessment

Risk assessment and risk management are legal requirements. For education visits they involve the careful examination of what could cause harm during the visit and whether enough precautions have been taken or whether more should be done. The aim is to make sure no one gets hurt or becomes ill.

The control measures should be understood by those involved. Risk assessments should explicitly cover how special educational needs and medical needs are to be addressed. The programme of a visit, as set out in the risk assessment and the consent form, should not be deviated from and should include details of contingency measures – Plan B. Risk assessments must be recorded and reviewed. It is recommended to use pupils in the process of assessing risk assessment.

Risk assessment for education visits can be usefully considered as having three levels:

- **Generic activity risk assessments** are likely to apply to the activity wherever and whenever it takes place. Repeated events e.g. sports fixtures. However, even these will require redating and amending to suit the group of children as all pupils have such divergent needs;
- Visit/site specific risk assessments which will differ from place to place adgroup to group; and
- **Ongoing risk assessments** that take account of, for example, illness of staff or pupils, changes of weather, availability of preferred activity.

Controlling and Reducing Risk

Staff-managed young people Young People who have been involved in planning - carrying out own risk assessment Your training Your forethought and planning Recognise that what can go wrong will go wrong

Strategies to Reduce Risks

Mobile phones Pre-planning visits Use internet and multi map to give pupils hand-outs of locations **ad**rendezvous points Young People carry cards with addresses and phone numbers Buddy system Explain risks and practise procedures First aid training Plenty of adult helpers

Ongoing Risk Assessment

Risk assessment does not end when the visit begins. Changes to the itinerary, changes to the weather, incidents (whether minor or major), staff illness – all or any of these may bring pupils face to face with unexpected hazards difficulties give rise to the need to reassess risk.

The Party Leader (and other adults with responsibility) prepares ongoing risk assessments while the visit is taking place. These normally consist of judgements and decisions made as the need arises. They should be informed by the generic and visit or site-specific risk assessments.

It is good practice to have briefings each night to take stock and assess the circumstances for the next day, and to spend time early the next morning explaining arrangements to the pupils.

Check the local weather forecast

- To inform decisions on appropriate clothing;
- To be aware of whether water activities might be in areas prone to flash floods, high winds etc.;
- To be aware of whether trekking or climbing at altitude might be subject to dramatic changes of weather; potential for fallen trees, avalanches etc.

Seek local knowledge of potential hazards, e.g.

- Tides;
- Rivers/streams prone to sudden increases in flow;
- Difficult terrain;
- Crossing points for road, rail or water;
- Unstable cliffs.

Plan B

- Good forward planning will always include alternative plans in case the itinerary needs to be changed;
- A flexible itinerary can allow activities from later in the visit to substituted for earlier activities if those are prevented by unexpected circumstances;
- The Party Leader faced with potential difficulties will feel more confident to change the itinerary if a pre-assessed alternative is available;
- Regardless of whether alternatives have been pre-assessed, always take time to reassess risks if the itinerary changes;
- On arrival at an alternative site or activity that has not previously been risk assessed, we recommend the Party Leader should risk assess the situation before allowing the pupils to disembark from the transport;

6. An unknown location might involve hazards not covered in the original risk assessment, for example if the original intention to visit a land-only site has to be changed at short notice to a lake or seaside location.

7. Emergency Procedures

Emergency procedures are an essential part of planning a visit or off-site activity.

Ensure that you know where help can be sourced and where the nearest A and E facility is located.

If an accident occurs the priorities are to:

- Assess the situation
- Safeguard the rest of the party
- Attend to the casualty
- Inform the emergency services

The following notes are for guidance. The procedures listed will not apply to all emergencies.

- 1. Assess the nature and extent of the emergency.
- 2. Make sure all other group members are safe from danger and are looked after.
- 3. Render first aid and attend to any casualties.
- 4. Call the emergency services as required. As a minimum you will need b know:
 - Precise location
 - Description of the accident
 - Time of the accident
 - Number of casualties
 - Nature of injuries
 - Total number in the party
 - Your telephone numbers
- 5. Supervise and support the remainder of the group and arrange for the return to base.
- 6. Contact Headteacher or designated senior member of staff with the information listed under (4) above and:(contact card from Centre Office).
 - Names and telephone numbers, if necessary, of individuals involved
 - Names of other members in the party
 - Action taken so far
 - Action to be taken and by whom
 - Telephone numbers for future communication.
 - For a serious incident, where the media may be involved, identify alternative 'phone numbers at "home" and "off-site base" as other lines will quickly become jammed.

Preparation

By their nature, emergencies are usually unexpected. But careful emergency planning can mitigate the trauma of being caught up in an emergency. It is good practice for the Party Leader to:

• Practise emergency drills e.g. evacuation of minibus;

Emergency procedures framework during the visit

If an emergency occurs on a Centre visit the group leader should maintain and resume control of the group overall. The main factors to consider include:

- Establish the nature and extent of the emergency as quickly as possible;
- Ensure that all the group are safe and looked after;
- Establish any casualties' names and get immediate medical attention;
- Ensure that a teacher accompanies casualties to hospital with any relevant medical information, and that the rest of the group is adequately supervised at all times and kept together;
- Notify the police if necessary;
- Ensure all group members who need to know are aware of the incident;
- Ensure all group members follow the emergency procedures and the roles allocated to them, revise procedures and re-allocate roles where necessary;
- Inform the Centre contact and provider/tour operator. The Centre contact number should be accessible at all times during the visit;
- Details of the incident to pass on to the Centre should include: nature, date and time of incident; location of incident; names of casualties addetails of their injuries' names of others involved so that parents can be reassured; action taken so far; action yet to be taken (and by whom);
- Centre contact should notify parents, providing as full a factual account of the incident as possible.
- Notify insurers, especially if medical assistance is required (this may done by the Centre contact);
- Notify the British Embassy/Consulate if an emergency occurs abroad;
- Write down accurately and as soon as possible all relevant facts, witness details and preserve vital evidence;
- Keep a written account of all events, times and contacts after the incident;
- Complete an accident report form as soon as possible;
- No-one in the group should speak to the media.

8. Advice on Specific Activities

Coastal Visits

The group leader will want to bear the following points in mind when assessing the risks of a coastal activity:

Tides, rip tides and sandbanks are potential hazards timings and all routes should be checked;

Group members should be aware of warning signs and flags;

Establish a base on the beach to which members of the group may return if separated; Look out for hazards such as glass, barbed wire and sewage outflows etc.;

Some of a group's time on a beach may be recreational. The Deputy Leader should consider which areas of the terrain are out of bounds, and whether the risk assessment allows swimming in the sea;

Cliff tops can be highly dangerous for Centre groups even during daylight. The group should keep to a safe distance from the cliff edge at all times – a "buffer zone" between the young people and the hazard. Visit Leaders are aware that cliff falls can mean that cliff paths stop abruptly at the cliff edge;

The Party Leader should not normally allow pupils to ride mountain bikes on any route that is near a sheer drop e.g. coastal path or towpath. If the risk assessment indicates that the risk could be managed adequately, then there should be a small known group of skilled and experienced riders accompanied by appropriately qualified staff;

The local coastguard, harbour master, lifeguard or tourist information office can provide information and advice on the nature and location of hazards.

Swimming in the sea or other natural waters

Swimming and paddling or otherwise entering the waters of river, canal, sea and lake should never be allowed as an impromptu activity. The pleas of children to be allowed to bathe – because it is hot weather, for example, or after a kayaking exercise – should be resisted where the bathing has not been prepared for. In-water activities should take place only when a proper risk assessment has been completed and proper measures put in to control the risks. The activities should be formal and supervised. Pupils should always be in sight and reach of their supervisors.

Pupils from The Bridge Centre are not permitted to swim in open water at any time on a Centre trip. Close supervision of paddling may be permitted if checks carried out indicate it is safe.

9. Transport and Travel

The Centre Manager, Visit Leader and Deputy should be aware of the high level of accidents related to the use of minibuses and cars and the drivers' liability to prosecution in the event of breaking the law. When journeys are planned, Managers and the Party Leader must be satisfied that drivers are aware of the constraints which affect any journey by road. Some of the constraints are:

- Passenger safety;
- The competence and training of the driver to drive the proposed vehicle and whether the driver holds the appropriate valid licence;
- The experience and capacity of the driver to maintain concentration;
- The type of journey; long distance or local;
- Traffic conditions;
- Weather conditions;
- The journey time and distance, including the length of the driver's day;
- Emergency arrangements;
- Insurance cover;
- Supervision;
- Stopping points on longer journeys for toilets and refreshments;
- Suitability of vehicle for the nature of the journey.

Prior to the journey a check should be carried out on basic safety including tyres, lights, windscreen wipers. A similar check should be carried at by volunteers or parents on any car they may provide. These checks should complement regular Centre-based procedures and garage servicing. Note that it is the driver who is responsible for a vehicle during any off-site journey.

Staff and volunteers should not drive when taking medication, drugs or alcohol or undergoing treatment that might affect their ability or judgement.

Seat Belts

- Minibuses and coaches used to carry three or more young people aged 16 or less must be fitted with seat belts and a forward-facing seat each young person;
- Young people riding in the front passenger seats of minibuses are required by law to use a seat belt;
- Every young person travelling in a car should wear a seat belt;
- Vehicles without seat belts should not be used;
- Lap belts are a less effective, but acceptable, alternative;
- Where specified in the child's risk assessment or care plan or if the child is small booster seats or other special seats and harnesses should be used.

Emergency Procedures

Should a vehicle need to stop in an emergency the occupants of the vehicle should remain together under the direct supervision of a responsible adult until the arrival of required assistance. The group leader should normally evacuate the vehicle and move the group to a position behind the safety barrier on amotorway or well away from moving traffic.

Vehicle Loading

The driver is responsible for any load carried. Uninterrupted access must be maintained to all doors; luggage and equipment must not block gangway or doors or access to them. Doors must be left unlocked when the vehicle is carrying passengers.

Head Counts etc.

Whatever the length and nature of the visit, regular head counting of young people should take place, particularly before leaving any venue. It is good practice for all supervisors to:

- Carry a list/register of all pupils and adults involved in the visit at all times;
- Ensure that pupils are readily identifiable, especially if the visit is to a densely populated area. Brightly coloured caps, T-shirts or a Centre uniform can help identify group members more easily;
- Avoid identification that could put pupils at risk e.g. name badges (though some Centre's find it useful to provide pupils with badges displaying the name of the Centre or emergency contact number
- Ensure that all pupils are aware of rendezvous points;
- Ensure that all pupils know what to do if they become separated from the group.

Remote Supervision

Supervision can be close or remote.

- Close supervision occurs when the group remain within sight and contact of the supervisor;
- Remote supervision occurs when, as part of planned activities, a group works away from the supervisor but is subject to stated controls. The supervisor is present though not necessarily near or in sight, but their whereabouts are known;
- Down time (or recreational time) may involve close or sight supervision, but should not be unsupervised the supervisors continue to be in charge;
- It is essential that everyone involved in the visit understands the supervision arrangements and expectations.

9. First Aid Kit

For all activities and the associated journey an appropriate first aid kit should be available from the Centre secretary and its stocks regularly replenished. The group leader and other staff should be aware of its contents and know have they should be used. All staff should know how to contact the emergency services, in this country or abroad, if relevant.

A minimum of equipment in a first aid kit should include:

- a. Guidance card giving general first aid advice
- b. Plasters in a variety of different sizes and shapes
- C. Small, medium and large sterile gauze dressings
- d. Triangular bandages
- e. Crepe rolled bandages
- f. Safety pins
- g. Disposable sterile gloves
- h. Tweezers
- i. Scissors
- j. Alcohol-free cleansing wipes
- k. Sticky tape

- I. Cream or spray to relieve insect bites and stings
- m. Burn gel
- n. Antiseptic cream
- O. Distilled water for cleaning wounds
- p. Eye wash and eye bath

10. Protection of Children

All Stable Future employees whose work involves regular or unsupervised access to young people under the age of 18 are screened by Amegreen Central Services, all staff have DBS checks.

It is also a requirement that volunteers, including those working on specific projects or providing services for the Centre, should be DBS checked if they have regular or unsupervised contact with young people.

The Manager, Deputy or EVC give approval for off-site activities and will therefore need to consider whether volunteers, including parents, can accompany such activities. There is no unsupervised access to children as inappropriate.

11. Local Learning Area (Blue text COVID related)

General

Visits/activities within the 'Local Learning Area' that are part of the normal curriculum and take place during the normal Centre Day follow the Operating Procedure below.

These visits/activities:

- a. must be recorded on ClearCare tracker or daily diary under 'Local Area Visit'
- b. do not require parental consent.
- C. need a completed class risk assessment (Amended and updated aneeded).
- d. do not normally need additional risk assessments / notes (other than following the Operating Procedure below).

Boundaries

The boundaries of the Local Learning Area are shown on the attached map. This area

includes, but is not limited to, the following frequently used venues:

- e. Stable Futures Farm boundary
- f. The Paddocks Field Boundary
- g. Sulley Farm Boundary

'No-go' areas within the Boundaries

- h. Mortimer Village
- i. Main Roads

Operating Procedure for Local Learning Area

The following are potentially significant issues/hazards within our Local Learning Area:

- j. Road traffic.
- k. Other people
- I. social distancing
- m. members of the public

- n. animals etc
- o. Losing a young person out of sight
- p. Uneven surfaces and slips, trips, and falls
 - o Weather conditions
 - o Activity specific issues when doing fieldwork (nettles, brambles, rubbish, etc)

These are managed by a combination of the following:

- q. Staff will record the activity on Local Area Visit planner
- r. The Manager or Deputy leader EVC must give verbal approval before a group leaves.
- s. Signing in/out must be completed when leaving the building.
- t. Only staff judged competent to supervise groups in this environment are approved.
- u. The concept and Operating Procedure of the 'Local Learning Area' is explained to all new joiners when joining the Centre, and a synopsis is in the Centre Prospectus and induction process.
- v. Regular handwashing or regular hand sanitising is in place
- w. Students are briefed on keeping their distance from members of the public
- x. The selected route takes the least busy option
- y. Staff are familiar with the area, including any 'no-go' areas, and have practiced appropriate group management techniques.
- z. Young People have been trained and have practiced standard techniques for road crossings in a group.
- aa. Pupils' clothing and footwear is checked for appropriateness prior to leaving Centre.
- bb. Staff are aware of any relevant pupil medical information and ensure that any required medication is available.
- cc. A mobile is taken with each group and the office have a note of the number (Recorded on Signing in/out form).
- dd. Appropriate personal protective equipment is taken when needed (e.g. gloves, facemasks bag for waste, tissues etc.)

IMPORTANT

- ee. All medication and medical procedures must be taken with staff
- ff. Staff are familiar with and follow The Bridge Standard Procedures appropriate for visit
- gg. Staff ratios must be appropriate for the group going out

Appendix 1

Protocol - Residential visits

1. Communication

Information to parents/carers will be provided regarding itineraries, equipment, staff attending and other essential information. It will also include information of emergency procedures. Young people will be fully briefed on how to contact staff during the night or when away from direct supervision. Staff will make themselves available for contact at all times during off site. The briefing should include measures to take in the event of loss of contact e.g. no phone signal or battery or becoming detached from the group.

2. Medical Intervention

Risk assessments will identify the nearest Accident and Emergency Department or medical centre to the trip base, activity centers and other key locations used on the trip.

- Staff ratios should always be sufficient to allow a member of staff baccompany a child to hospital and ensure that ratios are maintained with the remainder of the group.
- In the case of injury, when in doubt, medical opinions MUST be sought. This is particularly true if swelling is evident.
- If a child is hurt or becomes unwell. Parents should be informed as sonas is practical.
- Written records must be kept of any medication administered by staff.
- Accident forms must be completed on return for all cases of accident and injury.

3. Consumption of alcohol

Staff should consider themselves on duty at all times for the duration of an offsite trip. This enables all members of staff to act appropriately and effectively in the case of an emergency. No alcohol should be consumed at any time by any member of staff employed by Amegreen for the duration of the activity.